OFFICIAL

SCOTTISH POLICE

4

, &

AUTHORITY

UGHDARRAS POILIS NA H-ALBA

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee

12 November 2025

Minutes of the Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee held on Thursday 14
August 2025 at 10am via Webex.

Authority Members
present:

Mary Pitcaithly
Paul Edie

Pauline Howie
Katharina Kasper

Committee Member
apologies:

Angela Leitch

In attendance:

Scottish Police Authority

Lynn Brown, Chief Executive Officer

John McNellis, Head of Finance, Audit and
Risk

Karen Vallance, Governance Support Officer

Forensic Services
Craig Donnachie, Head of Quality and
Assurance

Police Scotland

Deputy Chief Constable Bex Smith

Assistant Chief Constable Lynn Ratcliff (Item
3-5)

Tom McMahon, Director of Strategy and
Analysis

Peter Jones, Health and Safety Assistant
Manager

Angela Wood, Head of Policy, Audit, Risk and
Assurance

DCI Shirley Carr

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee 1

14 August 2025

OFFICIAL




OFFICIAL

Grant Thornton
Jo Brown, External Audit Partner

BDO
Claire Robertson, Risk and Advisory Services
Director

HMICS
John Patterson

1. STANDING ITEMS

1.1 WELCOME AND APOLOGIES

The Committee Chair opened the meeting and welcomed all attendees.
Members noted apologies from Angela Leitch.

1.2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members noted no declarations of interest.

1.3 MINUTE OF MEETING HELD ON 21 MAY 2025 FOR APPROVAL

Members approved the Minute of the 21 MAY 2025 meeting an
amendment to the wording of the first bullet point on page 4:

Members asked what more could be done to address outstanding issues
on vetting and what the risks are. DAdam advised there had been a
concentrated focus on the area, and it was recognised that resources
within the unit may not being used effectively. Work is being accelerated,
and it was hoped some HMICS recommendations on vetting would be
closed soon but BDO ones would remain open. DAdam assured Members
there was appropriates levels of internal reporting and escalation.

1.4 ACTION LOG AND MATTERS ARISING
Members noted the action log.

1.5 DECISION ON TAKING BUSINESS IN PRIVATE (ITEMS 6-10)

Members agreed that, in accordance with paragraph 20 of the SPA
Standing Orders, the Committee would consider items 6-10 in private for
the reasons set out on the agenda.

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee
14 August 2025
OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL

2. AUDIT AND IMPROVEMENT
2.1 INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE

Members considered the report which provided an update on internal
audit progress and Q1 follow up results. Claire Robertson (CRobertson)
highlighted a number of key points detailed within the report.

In discussion the following matters were raised:

e Members heard the overtime report was delayed to all management
responses to be received.

e Members asked what impact delays have on service delivery.
CRobertson explained that outstanding recommendations are varied
in multiple areas, but some delays are creating risk exposure that
are not within appetite.

e Members sought assurance that there were appropriate channels of
internal governance. Angela Wood (AWood) advised there was
governance reporting structures at all levels, from divisional
dashboards up to the Police Scotland Audit and Risk Board. She
assured the Committee root causes for slippage are discussed at all
levels.

e John McNellis (JMcNellis) complemented BDO’s Power BI dashboard
and welcomed any feedback on how it can be improved.

Members noted the report.

2.2 POLICE SCOTLAND AUDIT AND IMPROVEMENT RECOMMENDATION
TRACKER Q1

Members considered the report which provided an update of current open
recommendations from all audit and improvement activity. AWood
provided a summary of the key points detailed within the report.

Members welcomed the recent improvements but were concerned that
the focus on new recommendations meant that high risk older
recommendation would not be progressed. AWood assured the Committee
that high-risk recommendations are always high priority, and work
continues to gather evidence to close them off. The Chair stated concern
remains over any detrimental impact to the service.

Members noted the report

2.3 SPA AUDIT AND IMPROVEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS UPDATE

Members considered the report which provided an update on progress
against the SPA Corporate Strategy for 2024/25, and open
recommendations from all SPA corporate audit and inspection activity.
JMcNellis highlighted a number of key points detailed within the report.

No questions were raised.
Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee 3

14 August 2025
OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL

Members noted the report.

3. INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING
3.1 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS

Members considered the audit report on health and safety. CRobertson
highlighted a number of key points detailed within the report.

In discussion the following matters were raised:

e Members noted the most concerning recommendations related to
prioritisation and culture. Whilst assured that management have
accepted the recommendations, they sought further assurance that
they are being appropriately prioritised. The Committee were told
Police Scotland had requested the audit as the issues were known
and the audit had further highlighted where the gaps are. Peter
Jones (PJones) told the Committee real improvements had been
made in risk assessments and more access to training and inputs
has improved the culture aspect.

e Members sought further information on non-adherence to risk
assessment guidance. PJones explained generic risk assessments
weren’t getting used properly as they were being adapted to suit
specific areas. He assured the Committee work was continuing to
improve both the template and the guidance.

e Members sought comment from the Force Executive on the value
being placed on Health and Safety. DCC Bex Smith (DCCSmith)
stated that a lack of consistency is the main issue, and the Health
and Safety manager has been clear to the Force Executive that it
needs addressed. She confirmed that Health and Safety is on the
Agenda at Management Boards.

e The Chair noted that the People Committee will also likely expect
reporting on progress. PJones advised that the action plan is near
completion which can be reported.

Members considered the audit report on management of
recommendations. CRobertson highlighted a number of key points
detailed within the report.

In discussion the following matters were raised:

e Tom McMahon acknowledged that the number of outstanding
recommendations was unacceptable, and he explained that a
broader conversation is taking place about how governance can be
more connected, to move away from silo executive ownership. He
assured the Committee that work will move at pace to implement
changes within a reasonable timeframe.

e Committee Members reiterated the importance of moving at pace to
reduce the number of recommendations.

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee 4
14 August 2025
OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL

e John Paterson (JPaterson) commented that HMICS are seeing
improvements, and recommendations and risks were clearly
reported within DCCSmiths portfolio. He encouraged audit and
inspection bodies to work with Police Scotland on older
recommendation to look at whether the outcome has been
achieved.

Members noted the report

4. ASSURANCE REPORTING

4.1 POLICE SCOTLAND BEST VALUE UDPATE / 4.2 SPA AND FORENSIC
SERVICES BEST VALUE UPDATE

JMcNellis advised that audit work is mostly complete, and indicative early
findings have been shared which are positive. He explained most findings
were anticipated from the self-assessment and emerging findings
meetings are being held with Audit Scotland and HMICS. They will write a
report, with early drafts expected late autumn, and the final report will be
presented to parliament in early 2026.

No questions were raised.
Members noted the update.

4.3 POLICE SCOTLAND WHISTLEBLOWING ANNUAL REPORT

Members considered the report which provided an overview of Police
Scotland’s whistleblowing data for the financial year 2024/25 and planned
next steps for 2025/26. ACC Lynn Ratcliff (ACCRatcliff) highlighted a
number of key points detailed within the report.

In discussion the following matters were raised:

e ACCRatcliff clarified that protected disclosures are the same as
whistleblowing in the sense that officers or staff are raising it in the
public interest and in terms of how they are treated.

e The Committee were assured that if a matter is investigated and it
is established that it is not whistleblowing or protected disclosure, it
does not change the protected status of the person. In terms of the
38 protected disclosures, Members were told approximately 60%
have been found to be criminal, 15% gone to PIRC and remainder
are internal processes such as grievance or performance. Members
requested Police Scotland confirm how many of the 38 protected
disclosures move to internal processes such as grievance.

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee 5
14 August 2025

OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL

e ACCRatcliff committed to ensuring future reports provide a
breakdown and more detail of each category. This was welcomed by
the Committee.

e Noting that 38 protected disclosures is a small percentage of the
overall number of referrals, Members questioned whether the
number was right and sought assurance that the triage process is
appropriate. ACCRatcliff responded that the Professional Standard
Department (PSD) staff have undergone significant training to allow
them to determine if a referral falls under whistleblowing. The
organisation is raising awareness of whistleblowing, protected
disclosures and the rights that are given to those who report, and
as such there is an increase in reporting which is positive. She
confirmed the organisation is committed to continuing training.
Members heard that whistleblowing formed part of the HMICS
conduct review and recommendations are expected.

e Members sought further information on how feedback is provided.
ACCRatcliff responded that providing feedback can be difficult as
some reports are anonymous. She advised that when a report has
gone into the conduct or criminal space, the privacy afforded from
the Conduct Regulations means it can be difficult to provide
feedback. Members were assured that every report received is
acknowledged.

e The Committee discussed holding a deep dive session to better
understand what segregates the 38 protected disclosures from
other referrals, and the levels of assessment and investigation
applied. ACCRatcliff agreed this would be helpful and highlighted
that the vast amount of criminality reported is off duty criminality
which is not whistleblowing. This is reflected in suspension and
restricted duty details. She explained that the legislation criteria
means that off duty criminality and whistleblowing are unlikely to
overlap.

e Members questioned how organisational learning is applied.
ACCRatcliff explained there was a humber of mechanisms to decant
any learning. Members heard TMcMahon has been tasked with
taking forward a broader concept of organisational learning and
securing platform where learning and advice from across the
organisation can be uploaded. In terms of PSD, anti-corruption and
whistleblowing matters, Members heard there was a single point of
contact in every division to provide local level learning and regional
and national level learning was also applied. ACCRatcliff agreed to
provide a lived example.

Members noted the report and agreed the following actions:

20250814-AUD-001: Police Scotland to confirm how many of the 38
protected disclosures move to grievance.

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee 6
14 August 2025
OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL

20250814-AUD-002: A deep dive session to be arranged to allow
Members to better understand what segregates the 38 protected

disclosures from other referrals, and the levels of assessment and
investigation applied.

20250814-AUD-003: Members to provided with a lived example of how
organisational learning has been applied.

4.4 SPA WHISTLEBLOWING ANNUAL REPORT

Members considered the report which provided an annual update and
assessment on the effectiveness of whistleblowing arrangements within
the SPA. JMcNellis highlighted a number of key points detailed within the
report.

Members were informed the SPA statistics on staff understanding and
confidence came from recent SPA pulse surveys. Forensic Services do not
have equivalent data for that period, but the current staff survey should
provide some information.

Members noted the report.

4.5 POLICE SCOTLAND SCRS CRIME AUDIT 2023-24

Members considered the report which provided an overview of the
Scottish Crime Recording Standard (SCRS) Crime Audit 2023-24. AWood
highlighted a number of key points detailed within the report.

In discussion the following matters were raised:

e Members acknowledged the good compliance in bigger divisions but
sought further information on the variances between some. AWood
advised there was a national hub for shared learning and variances
were due to different system inputs.

e Members heard this would not be reported annually to avoid
duplication as HMICS are carrying out their own crime audit review.
JPaterson advised work has already started and the audit is due
later in autumn. He advised Members that results are reflective of
transformation programme benefits.

Members noted the report.

5. AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE WORK PLAN
5.1 COMMITTEE WORKPLAN

Members were presented with the work plan which proposed Committee
items for the next 12 months.

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee 7
14 August 2025

OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL

Members noted the plan.

The Committee Chair paid tribute to SPA CEO Lynn Brown and thanked
her for her support. Lynn Brown thanked the Committee, John McNellis
and the SPA and Police Scotland finance teams.

The remaining items were taken in private.

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee
14 August 2025
OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee
14 August 2025
OFFICIAL



